
AGENDA 
Community Redevelopment Area Advisory Board 

Thursday, January 4, 2018   |    3:00 PM – 5:00 PM 
City Commission Conference Room, City Hall 

A. Housekeeping 

B. Financial Update 

C. Action Items 
1. Old Business

1.1 Meeting Minutes dated December 7, 2017 (Pg. 1-5)
1.2 Midtown Affordable Housing Program Update (Pg. 6-8)
1.3 114 East Parker Street Update (Pg. 9-20)
1.4 Fix-It-Up Incentive Update (Pg. 21-22)

2. New Business
2.1 Tapatios Grant Request (Pg. 23-38)

D. Discussion Items 

E. Adjourn 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  
Thursday, February 1, 2017, 3:00 - 5:00 PM – City Commission Conference Room 



$763,353

$128,420

$645,141

Downtown Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

$647,272

$736

$84,481

Dixieland Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

$2,498,015

$329,316

$7,430,767

Midtown Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

FY 2018
January 2, 2018



 

 

Community Redevelopment Area Advisory Board 
Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, December 7, 2017 
3:00 – 5:00 PM 
City Commission Conference Room, City Hall 
 
Attendance 
Board Members:  Cory Petcoff (Chair), Ben Mundy (Vice-Chair), Brian Goding, Pastor Edward Lake, Frank 

Lansford, Commissioner Jim Malless, Cliff Wiley, Dean Boring and Zelda Abram 
 

Absent:   
 

Staff:  Nicole Travis (CRA Manager), Celeste Deardorff (Community Development Interim Director), Alis 
Drumgo, Valerie Ferrell, D’Ariel Reed, Jonathan Rodriguez and Michael Smith 

 

Guests:  Marcos Fernandez (Nineteen61), Barry Friedman (Lakeland Now) 
  
Packets 
 Meeting Minutes dated November 2, 2017 
 Memo – Financial Update 
 Memo – Seventeen20 Update 
 Memo – Lincoln Square Update 
 Memo – Mass Market Parking Lots 
 
Handouts 
 Arts & Entertainment 
 D’Lucas 
 Midtown Affordable Housing Program 

 
Housekeeping 

 
Action Items – Old Business 

 
 

Meeting Minutes dated November 2, 2017  
In response to Ben Mundy, Nicole Travis stated that the minutes would be revised to clarify that Nujak’s value 
engineered savings of $162,000 to $200,789 for the overall project as opposed to individual savings on each 
Lincoln Square home. 
 
Commissioner Jim Malless moved approval of the November 2, 2017 minutes as amended. Pastor Edward 
Lake seconded the motion and it passed 9-0. 
 
Financial Update 
Nicole Travis explained that the CRA Available Funds Report reflects how much unappropriated surplus is left 
in each account based on projects that the CRA encumbered and within contract. The Midtown account 
includes the entire development of the Lincoln Square project. She also noted that Midtown’s income is 
currently over 2 million dollars per year. 
 
 
 



 

 

Seventeen20 Update 
Nicole Travis provided an update on the property search for Jon and Sarah Bucklew. CRA staff was previously 
instructed to find a suitable property, preferably in the East Main District. The building of interest on Rose 
Street was purchased by another company prompting revision of the target area to include the vicinity 
surrounding Mass Market, in an effort to continue momentum within the Midtown district. 
 
717 North Florida Avenue and 111 East Parker Street are both located two blocks west of Mass Market and 
the future location of the Food Truck Park. An offer of $220,000 was made for the property at 717 North 
Florida Avenue. A separate offer was made for the appraised value of 111 East Parker Street with the seller 
having an option to withdraw if the appraisal is unfavorable. Both offers are subject to board approval.  
 
Staff is proposing the purchase of both properties with renovation estimations varying between $80-$100 per 
square foot. 
 
Alis Drumgo noted that Jon Bucklew’s original request listed the space requirement for Seventeen20 at 20,000 
square feet. The combination of the two buildings would allow for such. 
 
Commissioner Jim Malless expressed concern about Bucklew’s request of ownership of the property bringing 
the CRA’s total investment into the project to 2.5 million dollars. He suggested the agreement be amended to 
include a buyout of 75% to 80%.  
 
Ben Mundy requested the Bucklews submit a business plan and financial statements for the board’s review. 
 
Cory Petcoff suggested a non-refundable deposit on the future purchase of the property at $50,000 to $100,000.  
 
Nicole reminded the board that during the Bucklew’s original presentation they mentioned having $200,000 to 
$250,000 reserved for investment into the project. 
 
Ben Mundy suggested the Bucklews invest their money into the renovation of the property as opposed to a 
reserved deposit, to facilitate the anticipated buildout of the property befitting their needs. 
 
Cory Petcoff suggested voting to approve purchase of the property, withholding agreement on the development 
of the site. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the funds available and income expectancy for Midtown. 
 
Nicole stated that the financial information in question will be included for each account in the Agenda packets 
going forward. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the use of 114 East Parker Street. 
 
Ben Mundy suggested using the property at 717 North Florida Avenue in conjunction with CRA owned 
property at 114 East Parker Street in lieu of purchasing the property at 111 East Parker Street. 
 
Alis Drumgo mentioned the need for parking would be solved with the purchase of 111 East Parker Street as 
a portion of the building would be demolished for that cause. 
 
Commissioner Jim Malless moved approval of staff’s recommendation of acquisition of 717 North Florida 
Avenue and 111 East Parker Street with a not-to-exceed amount of $750,000. Dean Boring seconded the 
motion and it passed 9-0. 
 
 



 

 

Lincoln Square Update 
Alis Drumgo reported that the City Commission approved the CRA/Nujak (Contractor) contract for 
$4,532,140 to construct the Lincoln Square homes on December 4th, 2017. Staff elected to decline options that 
would devalue the quality of the homes. Cost savings are estimated at $51,781 across all phases of construction.  
 
Grade-A-Way is 80% complete with site work and infrastructure, and the project is two months ahead of 
schedule. With all homes under contract and deposits on hand, staff recommends the Board commit to all 
phases of construction to prevent any construction delays for the Contractor. 
 
Eddie Lake moved approval of staff’s recommendation.  Dean Boring seconded the motion and it passed 9-0. 
 
 
Mass Market Update 
Polk County Tax Collector, Joe Tedder, approached the CRA requesting assistance to provide additional 
parking of approximately 60 spaces for employees at his 916 N. Massachusetts Avenue facility which is across 
Plum Street the northern boundary of Mass Market. His request was specifically for a secure, paved parking lot 
with gated access. He proposed a lump sum payment to be determined in exchange for access to parking 
Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM.  
 
The CRA was also approached by Word Alive Ministries regarding the offering of their property at 0 Kentucky 
Avenue. This property was offered to the CRA at a price of $349,900 and the Advisory Board declined the 
offer to purchase. The current offering price is $200,000. This lot is currently paved which will significantly 
reduce the construction cost of a secured parking lot, and it is directly across Kentucky Avenue from the Tax 
Collector’s office. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize Staff to enter into a purchase agreement for 0 Kentucky Avenue at 
a price not to exceed $200,000 and undertake improvement to a secured parking lot at the Tax Collector’s 
expense in exchange for which the Tax Collector will have a long-term lease (the lease term will be determined 
by the cost of the improvement). The agreement with the Tax Collector would be negotiated during the due 
diligence period for the purchase contract. The CRA would then limit improvements on the lots directly across 
from Mass Market (830 N. Kentucky) to fencing and parking stops which is adequate for valet parking. 
 
Jim Malless moved approval of the purchase of Word Alive properties at 0, 902, 910 North Kentucky Avenue 
and 0 North Tennessee Avenue with a not to exceed amount of $230,000. Dean Boring seconded the motion 
and it passed 9-0. 
 
Action Items – New Business 

 
D’Lucas 
Valerie Ferrell introduced Marcos Fernandez, Executive Chef and owner of Nineteen61. Marcos is looking to 
expand his culinary reach to another location at 1037 Dixieland Mall Lane (formerly Crane’s Crossing) behind 
the Dixieland Mall. This location will be a commissary/bakery with to-go items and an outdoor seating area. 
The intent of the location is to serve primarily as a catering kitchen, with options for visitors to gather in a 
picnic-style setting. Two businesses will be established at this location, D’Lucas serving to-go items and Honey 
Comb serving as the bakery/catering service. Marcos is seeking a partnership with the CRA through assistance 
with façade improvements and new kitchen equipment. 
 
Marcos is not the owner of the building, but does have a standing lease agreement with preapproval from the 
landlord for the renovations. Preliminary estimates obtained by the applicant demonstrate a total investment 
of $134,000 to prepare the building for the kitchen use as well as outdoor dining areas. The applicant is 
requesting the CRA to assist with the upgrades beyond the administrative program limits in the amount of 



 

 

$41,500. The CRA investment would represent 35% of the total investment for this project. Staff supports this 
request and recommends approval. 
 
Marcos Fernandez gave a brief presentation for D’Lucas and Honey Comb. 
 
Commissioner Jim Malless suggested limiting the scope of assistance to long-term investments for the project. 
 
Staff is seeking approval of the additional $11,500 cost above the administrative grant for both construction 
and kitchen equipment. 
 
Dean Boring moved approval staff’s recommendations.  Frank Lansford seconded the motion and it passed 8-
0. Cory Petcoff abstained from voting. 
 
Arts and Entertainment 
In an effort to entice and bring more investment into the CRA districts, staff is proposing creation of an Arts 
and Entertainment grant program. This program would offer funding to agencies seeking to host a community 
event centered around some cultural experience. In order to make best use of funds from the CRA, staff is 
recommending issuing a Request for Proposals to find a consultant who is able to analyze the cultural needs 
and define a brand identity for what is to become an Arts and Entertainment district. Once these are defined, 
the consultant would offer suggestions for program funding elements and how to implement public art projects 
and define cultural hubs in the Lakeland community.  
 
Nicole Travis gave a brief presentation of canvases painted by David Collins. He and the CRA staff are 
proposing the creation of 60 canvases to be strategically placed throughout the city to draw attention to different 
areas that are vacant or underutilized. Staff is requesting funds to secure a partnership with Mr. Collins. 
 
Jim Malless moved approval of staff’s request to move forward with the Arts and Culture R.F.P. process with 
a submission requirement to the Board defining the terms. He also authorized the allocation of funds from all 
three CRA accounts with a not to exceed amount of $25,000 as the first in installation payments with respect 
to event funding. Dean Boring seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
 
Midtown Affordable Housing 
The new home construction project at Lincoln Square has such a buzz in the Midtown area that CRA staff has 
received contact information for nearly four hundred interested buyers. With only twenty-one homes available 
at Lincoln Square, there is a high demand for housing in the area. Staff is proposing to continue with the 
neighborhood stabilization strategy by assisting with making quality affordable homes available in the Midtown 
district. One strategy to provide quality and affordable housing is to strategically purchase homes in need of 
limited repair, renovate the homes, and offer them for sale at affordable prices.  
 
Mike Smith reviewed two contracts for the Board’s approval.  
 
724 W. 8th Street, Lakeland, FL 33805 --- Purchase Price: $32,500 
 
Seller: 724 W 8th ST LAKELAND LLC 
 
638 W. 9th Street, Lakeland, FL 33805 --- Purchase Price: $32,500 
 
Seller: Home and Stone Florida LLC 
 
Due to time constraints a detailed discussion of the program will be moved to next month’s agenda. 
 



 

 

Cory Petcoff proposed moving to approve the purchase of the two homes in question and withholding motion 
on the details of the program yet to be disclosed. 
 
Dean Boring moved approval of the purchase of the contracted homes. Eddie Lake seconded the motion and 
it passed 9-0. 
 
Discussion Items  
Cory Petcoff mentioned the vacancies Downtown (due to Todd Baylis’ resignation), Midtown and the 
Commissioner’s seat (due to Jim Malless’ term ending). 
 
Adjourned at 4:46 PM  
 
Next Meeting, Thursday, January 4, 2018, 3 PM, City Commission Conference Room.   
 
 
           
Cory Petcoff, Chairman    Date 



 

 

 

Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 

From:   Michael Smith, CRA Project Manager 

CC:  Nicole Travis, CRA Manager 

Date:  January 2, 2018 

Re:  Midtown CRA Affordable Housing 

Introduction 

Quality and affordable housing is very limited in the Midtown CRA district.  There is a high 

volume of absentee owners and many of the homes are in disrepair.  Currently the Lakeland 

CRA offers a down payment assistance program to encourage buyers to move into Midtown, 

but the number of available houses is very low.  The new home construction project at Lincoln 

Square has created a buzz for the area and we received contact information for nearly four 

hundred interested buyers.  With only twenty-one homes available at Lincoln Square, there is 

a high demand for housing in the area.  Staff is proposing to continue with our neighborhood 

stabilization strategy by assisting with making quality affordable homes available in the 

district.  

 

Proposal 

One strategy to provide quality and affordable housing is to purchase homes in need of repair, 

renovate the homes, and offer them for sale at affordable prices.  There are several investors 

that own multiple homes in the Midtown CRA and have let the houses become dilapidated.  

Staff sees this as an opportunity to reduce the number of absentee landlord properties in the 

area.  These homes are either vacant or being rented in substandard living conditions.  The 

intent is for the LCRA to purchase a house through tax deed sale or direct purchase, renovate 



 

 

it, and offer it for sale with down payment assistance to a homestead buyer. The LCRA has 

the opportunity to replace an investor with a homestead buyer that wants to live in Midtown.   

The staff is not proposing to make a profit on the homes.  These homes will be sold at an 

affordable price and still cover expenses incurred. (See Table 1) 

Currently, houses are being purchased by investors as soon as they hit the market.  

Unfortunately, these investors are only putting minimal repairs into the homes and quickly 

renting them in substandard conditions.  In order for the LCRA to help break this cycle we 

need to be able to move quickly when the opportunity to purchase arises. 

 

Request 

The current process for the LCRA to purchase homes requires each contract to be brought 

before the Advisory Board for approval.  This process doesn’t lend itself well to purchasing in 

this market.  Staff is requesting approval to purchase homes in the approved designated target 

areas up to an annual amount of $400,000.  This budget would give staff the flexibility to 

purchase, renovate and sell approximately five houses.     

 

Enclosures: 

Table 1 

 



Es
tim

at
ed

AS
KI

N
G

PU
RC

HA
SE

RE
HA

B
AC

Q
 &

 R
EH

AB
 C

O
ST

S
SA

LE
S 

PR
IC

E
DP

A
TO

TA
L 

CO
ST

S
PR

O
FI

T/
LO

SS
PR

IC
E 

AF
TE

R 
DP

A
PI

TI
Ta

rg
et

 H
om

e
49

,9
00

.0
0

$ 
  

40
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
40

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

80
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
20

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$4

00
-$

60
0

ne
w

 ro
of

7,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

HV
AC

6,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

Fl
oo

rin
g

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

St
ru

ct
ur

al
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
Ki

tc
he

n 
Ba

th
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
Co

sm
et

ic
3,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

ic
al

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

M
isc

el
la

ni
ou

s
7,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   

TA
RG

ET
 P

RO
PE

RT
IE

S
AS

KI
N

G
PU

RC
HA

SE
RE

HA
B

AC
Q

 &
 R

EH
AB

 C
O

ST
S

SA
LE

S 
PR

IC
E

DP
A

TO
TA

L 
CO

ST
S

PR
O

FI
T/

LO
SS

PR
IC

E 
AF

TE
R 

DP
A

PI
TI

11
12

 9
th

44
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

  
40

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

25
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
65

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
15

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

80
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
(5

,0
00

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
 

60
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$3

75
-$

50
0

71
9 

W
 7

th
41

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
  

35
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
30

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

65
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

18
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
83

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

7,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

72
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$4

00
-$

60
0

51
5 

M
od

es
t S

t
47

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
  

40
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
30

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

70
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
20

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

90
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
10

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
80

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

$4
00

-$
60

0
51

5 
Re

du
ce

d 
fr

om
52

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
  

45
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 

Ho
m

e 
an

d 
St

on
e

32
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
50

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

82
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
20

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

10
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

(2
,5

00
.0

0)
$ 

   
   

 
80

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

$4
00

-$
60

0
32

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

25
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
57

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
15

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

72
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
2,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
60

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

$3
75

-$
50

0
32

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

35
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
67

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

20
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
87

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

12
,5

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

80
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$4

00
-$

60
0

33
0 

9t
h

69
,7

00
.0

0
$ 

  
65

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 

25
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
90

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
5,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

21
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 
11

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
(6

,0
00

.0
0)

$ 
   

   
 

84
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
$5

00
 - 

$7
00

Li
nc

ol
n 

Sq
ua

re
 A

re
a

M
ed

ia
n 

Ho
us

ho
ld

 In
co

m
e 

24
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

  
12

M
on

th
ly

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

 
Af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 R

at
e

30
%

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
m

en
t

60
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  

Ta
bl

e 
1

Af
fo

rd
ab

lil
ity

 

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 R

EH
AB

 C
O

ST
S 

AT
 D

IF
FE

RE
N

T 
PR

IC
E 

PO
IN

TS



1 

 

Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 

From:   Alis Drumgo, CRA Project Manager 

CC:  Nicole Travis, CRA Manager 

Date:  December 29, 2017 

Re:  114 E. Parker St. Update 

 

Platform Art and Wish Rents both expressed interest in 114 E. Parker St. at the November 2nd meeting. The 

Board requested the two businesses explore the following and return in sixty (60) days: 

 

 Shared use of the space, in an open concept, with a design amenable to both parties 

 Master Tenant/Sublease Structure 

 Proposed Lease Structure 

 

The two parties have provided renderings (attached) and have expressed, that shared space without subdivision 

is impractical. Both have also expressed disinterest in being a landlord, and would like to be direct tenants of the 

CRA. With that, the proposed lease terms are as follows: 

 

Business Monthly 

Base 

Rent 

Property 

Tax 

(est.) 

Sales 

Tax 

Monthly  

Rent  

(w. tax) 

Annual  

Base 

Rent 

Square 

Feet 

Price 

Per 

SF 

Price  

Per 

SF (w. tax) 

Lease 

Term 

Platform 

Art 

$200 $600 Exempt $250 $2,400 2,500 $0.96 $1.20 5yr 

w/3yr 

opt. 

Wish 

Rents 

$400 $1200 $336 $528 $4,800 5,000 $0.96 $1.27 3yr 

w/3yr 

opt. 
*Property tax is estimated 

 

 Tenants propose payment of utilities 

 Tenants propose separate metering 

 Tenants propose CRA pay for buildout, yet Platform intends oversee construction with Project Manager 

expense built into budget 



Page 2 

With the Board expressing a desire to make deals favorable to the CRA as redevelopment occurs, Staff has 

compiled the below information showing a comparison to current lease terms of similar businesses: 

 

Business Monthly 

Base 

Rent 

Property 

Tax 

(est.) 

Sales 

Tax 

Monthly  

Rent 

(w. tax) 

Annual  

Base  

Rent 

Square 

Feet 

Price 

Per SF 

Price  

Per SF 

(w. tax) 

Lease 

Term 

Non-Profit 

Platform 

Art 

$200 $600 Exempt $250 $2,400 2,500 $0.96 $1.20 5yr 

w/3yr 

opt. 

Art/ifact $250 $9,000 Exempt $750 cap $3,000 7,200 $0.42 $1.20 cap 5yr 

w/5yr 

opt. 
 *Art/ifact to pay no more than $750 in combination of rent and property tax in years 2-5 

 *Platform Art projected to pay 1/3 of taxes based on occupied space 

 

Business Monthly 

Base 

Rent 

Property 

Tax 

(est.) 

Sales 

Tax 

Monthly  

Rent 

(w. tax) 

Annual  

Base  

Rent 

Square 

Feet 

Price 

Per SF 

Price  

Per SF 

(w. tax) 

Lease 

Term 

Non-Profit 

Wish 

Rents 

$400 $1,200 $336 $528 $4,800 5,000 $0.96 $1.27 5yr 

w/3yr 

opt. 

Crystal’s 

World of 

Dance 

$300-

$750 

$1,800 $252-

$630 

$471-

$952.50 

$3,600-

$9,000 

2,350 $1.54-

$3.83 

$2.41-

$4.87 

5yr 

w/5yr 

opt. 
 *Wish Rents projected to pay 2/3 of taxes based on occupied space 

 *Crystal’s World of Dance has a graduate lease $300(for months 6-12), $500(years 2-3), and $750(years 4-5) 

 

The proposed terms are inconsistent with the Board’s request. However, the terms are similar to previous deals made 

with the CRA. Staff is requesting direction from the Board. 























 

Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 

From:   D’Ariel Reed, CRA Jr. Project Manager 

CC:  Nicole Travis, CRA Manager 

Date:  January 2, 2018 

Re:  Fix-It Up Incentive Program 

Introduction 

The Fix-It Up Incentive Program provides assistance to homesteaders and renters, within the 

specified boundaries, with exterior repairs or enhancements of the properties to improve safety, 

property values and aesthetics of the neighborhood.  We have completed at total of 34 houses.  

We continue to receive a lot of interest in the program as we currently have 23 residents on the 

waiting list. 

 

Problem 

Fix-It Up as it is today, improves the aesthetics of the property but is not having as strong of 

an impact on the aesthetics of the neighborhood, it’s not fully improving safety and is not 

increasing property values.  Our goal of improving safety is not being met because many of 

the houses are not structurally sound; they need roof repairs/replacements, have electrical, 

plumbing and HVAC deficiencies and/or in need of a complete rebuild.  Currently, we are 

unable to improve any of these issues as they are all prohibited.  We’re investing this money 

into these homes but not increasing the property’s value as the work is not requiring permits.  

Permits are the trigger that notifies the Property Appraiser that work is being done to the 

property. 

 

Recommendation 

Staff is proposing the Fix-It Up Incentive be broken up into three levels.   



 Level I would simply be the Fix-It Up program as it is today.

 Level II would increase the maximum grant amount to $25,000.  Houses that need roof

repair/replacement and/or exterior wood treatment and replacement will qualify for

Level II.  With the roof repairs, we will attempt to have homesteaders utilize their home

owner’s insurance and the grant funds will be used to cover their deductible.

 Level III will allow a full assessment of the house to determine whether the home

needs a major renovation or demo and rebuild.  This level will allow for interior repairs

limited to systems (Electrical, Plumbing and HVAC) only.  We are still working to

determine the specifics of how this level will function so we are not proposing

immediate implementation of this level at this time.  Staff will present the details

proposed for this level in conjunction with our new construction infill initiative, prior

to beginning any projects that fall into this level.



1 

Memo 
To: CRA Advisory Board 

From: Alis Drumgo, CRA Project Manager 

CC: Nicole Travis, CRA Manager 

Date: December 29, 2017 

Re: Tapatio’s Renovation 

Sandra & Rene Vargas are the owners and operators of Tapatio’s Mexican Restaurant located at 724 E. Memorial 

Blvd. The corridor is one of focus in the Midtown Redevelopment Plan and aesthetics are a key factor for area 

growth. The restaurant is one of few sit-down dining establishments along the corridor. Recently, Floridino’s, 

Italian Restaurant, next-door, went out of business. Tapatio’s has been operating for twenty-one years, and in 

November, they acquired the building for $835k.  



Page 2 

The Vargas’ would like to make their business more attractive, efficient, and accessible for clients with 

disabilities. There are also issues with exterior lighting, security deficiencies and lot circulation issues that need 

reconciliation. Sandra & Rene are seeking a partnership that will provide this long-standing business with the 

funding to proceed with the project and provide a model for what the CRA hopes to establish along the Memorial 

Blvd. corridor. 

General renovations include: 

 Site lighting

 ADA Accessibility

 Decorative ornamental fencing

 Reconciliation of the existing drive thru

 Approximately 3,000sf of additional space that includes reduced setback on the Memorial Blvd. frontage

to fit the urban context

 Kitchen and service area reconfiguration

 Major exterior renovation to the south and east facades.

 New signage

Tapatio’s utilized the Design Assistance Program and would be eligible for up to $90k reimbursement in 

conjunction with the façade and site improvement grant. Tapatio’s would also be eligible for $75k of the Infill 

Adaptive Reuse Program funds that reimburses 50% of site, security and ADA compliance. Overall, they could 

receive $165k administratively. However, cost of reconfiguring the kitchen and equipment costs, that are grant 

ineligible, will push the project beyond the owner’s budget. 

With building and construction costs being approximately $540,000, Tapatio’s is seeking funding from the CRA 

for their remodel above the grant allotment. After reviewing preliminary costs from Furr & Wegman Architects, 





E.
 M

EM
O

RI
AL

 B
LV

D.

E.
 1

ST
 S

TR
EE

T

NOT F
OR

CONSTRUCTIO
N

JO
B

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

S
H

E
E

T
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:

REVISION DESCRIPTION - THIS SHEET ONLY DATE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

  C P
R

O
J 

M
G

R
:

C
K

D
 B

Y
:

PHASE:DATE:

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN, FLOOR PLAN & ELEVATIONS

A
10

1

CONCEPTUAL DESIGN11.21.17

17
-6

0

M
A

B
P

D
W

RENOVATION & EXPANSION
TAPATIO'S RESTURANT

734 E. MEMORIAL BLVD.
LAKELAND, FL

S
C

A
LE

:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 S
O

U
T

H
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

3/
32

" 
=

 1
'-0

"
S

C
A

LE
:

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 E
A

S
T

 E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N
3/

32
" 

=
 1

'-0
"

S
C

A
LE

:

N

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 F
LO

O
R

 P
LA

N
1/

8"
 =

1'
-0

"
S

C
A

LE
:

N

S
C

H
E

M
A

T
IC

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

1/
32

" 
=

1'
-0

"

G:\2017\1760    CRA Tapatio's Restaurante Additions and Remodel\Drawings\04 Schematic Design\1760 Plan.dwg, A101, 11/21/2017 1:10:26 PM, abanks



Page 3 

who will manage the renovation project and bid out the respective components to ensure the best value, staff is 

recommending the CRA cover the cost of site lighting and ADA compliance at 100%. In addition, the 

recommendation is for the CRA to pay 100% of construction documents and civil engineering fees in the amount 

of $62,368 which accounts for 43% of Tapatio’s soft costs. The total CRA contribution would not exceed 

$340,000. The owner’s contribution would be $1,030,208 including the building purchase and would be at a $3 

to $1 ratio of CRA contribution. 

Renovation Amount Eligible Amount Recommended 

Façade & Site $90,000 $90,000 

Infill Adaptive Reuse $75,000 $75,000 

ADA Compliance (100%) 50% included in Infill Grant $64,740 

Site Lighting (100%) 50% included in Infill Grant $48,000 

Architectural Fees & Engineering Fees N/A $62,368 

Total Recommended $165,000 $340,108 



625 East Orange Street    Lakeland, Florida 33801    Phone: 863.688.1211    Fax: 863.688.1473 

December 20 , 2017 

Mr. Alis Drumgo 
CRA Project Manager 
Lakeland Community Redevelopment Agency 
228 S. Massachusetts Ave. 
Lakeland, FL 33801 

RE: Tapatio’s Restaurant 

Dear Mr. Drumgo: 

The following is our Probable Construction Cost Estimate: 

Façade & Site Improvement Grant (CRA contributes up to $90k): 
Signs (improve monument sign) $15,000.00 
Awnings/Canopies (demo canopies – new trellis)  $10,000.00 
Facades (Exterior walls, roof and door/window openings @ $40/S.F.) $86,320.00 
Landscape (between restaurant and Memorial Blvd.) $25,000.00 
Fence (730 LF aluminum 6FT “wrought iron look” & rolling gate) $30,000.00 
Subtotal: $166,320.00 

Infill Adaptive Reuse Grant (50% matching) for Interior Improvements (CRA contributes up to $75k): 
Electrical/Security ($12/SF x 2,158 S.F.)  $25,896.00 
Plumbing ($1,500 x 13 fixtures) $19,500.00 
HVAC (8 additional tons, dishwasher hood & Kitchen hood)  $45,600.00 
ADA Compliance (restrooms, doors, circulation) $64,740.00 
Site Lighting – 6 pole mounted fixtures  $48,000.00 
Subtotal: $203,736.00 

Additional Owner Expenses: 
Silt fence (320LF) $3,200.00 
Demolition (assuming no asbestos) $20,000.00 
Subtotal: $23,200.00 

Total “Hard” Construction Costs: $393,256.00 

Soft Costs: 
Architectural Fees for (Construction Documents) $34,968.00 
Site Lighting Design Fees $2,400.00 
Civil Engineering Fees $25,000.00 
General conditions (11%) $43,258.16 
Contractor overhead & profit (5%) $19,662.80 
Owner’s contingency (5%) $19,662.80 
Subtotal $144,951.76 

Total: (CRA contributes $165,000 total) $538,207.76 

If you have any questions, please contact our office. 

Very truly yours, 

adrum
Highlight

adrum
Highlight

adrum
Highlight

adrum
Highlight



|Page 2 of 2 

625 East Orange Street    Lakeland, Florida 33801    Phone: 863.688.1211    Fax: 863.688.1473 

M. Aaron Banks, AIA 



31 ity Redevelopment Agency
h Massachusetts Avenue 
, Florida 33801 

Section 1: 

Date: -11/28/2017->-[j]__. 

Applicant Name: �e/,e.. � J �C'-\odm � L.o. CffL...S. 
Business Name (If applicable): T llf(\-t:: Rt�ia:{Ca:-k J.k:;ca AV J?'.C .

I Mailing Address: 7 3 l/ P.. J.-1c:"'.'l0r,' C-1 l {3lv al,· /....a, he / C<--i)
Phone: U3- G8'.C- G958 Email Address: fuadrnVo.reas &1

eatn(l� }�ec,>:'.'i

I Project Address: 7 3Y [o$. 't J-Jc moc-:a, l '31vJ ,
Project Budget: $ ·3 0 � C, oo .. Op Requested Grant Amount: $ / SQ Oc>O � 00 
Lease Term (If applicable): �»�L�B�------

I Property Owner's Name:_......_\{ ..... (....,' ./}(".....___O...=:.L.o. ...... d'-------'s"""'--""Clf\ ........ d-'-'-r....,e,..__\)-""'--"a,O...:r.,:,;&J--OC.,.__j<-----------
1 Property Owner's Mailing Address: _ _.9�5.�5�-----"-"k........,;,�e __ O�e.e...,.___,SQ""'O_.__.....,pj.._._ ________ _
Phone: 8>63- GC,0- c,i33 Email Address: 

Commercial 

� Design Assistance -Sections 3 & 7 
(Dixieland and Midtown Only) 

�a�ade & Site Improvement -Sections 3 & 7 
(Dixieland and Midtown Only) 

D Food-Related Services -sections 3, 4 & 7 
(Dixieland and Midtown Only) 

9:3:'tnfill Adaptive Reuse-sections 3 & 7 
(Midtown Only) 

D Infrastructure Improvement -sections 3 & 7 
(Midtown Only) 

D TIF - Complete Sections 3, 6 & 7 
(Downtown and Midtown Only) 

Residential 

D Fix-It-Up -Sections 3 & 7 
(Midtown and Downtown Target Areas only 

D Homeowner's Down Payment Assistance 
Sections 5 & 7 
(Midtown Only) 

D Job Creation - Contact the CRA Office 
(Midtown Only) 















625 East Orange Street    Lakeland, Florida 33801    Phone: 863.688.1211    Fax: 863.688.1473 

December 20 , 2017 

Mr. Alis Drumgo 
CRA Project Manager 
Lakeland Community Redevelopment Agency 
228 S. Massachusetts Ave. 
Lakeland, FL 33801 

RE: Tapatio’s Restaurant 

Dear Mr. Drumgo: 

The following is our Probable Construction Cost Estimate: 

Façade & Site Improvement Grant (CRA contributes up to $90k): 
Signs (improve monument sign) $15,000.00 
Awnings/Canopies (demo canopies – new trellis)  $10,000.00 
Facades (Exterior walls, roof and door/window openings @ $40/S.F.) $86,320.00 
Landscape (between restaurant and Memorial Blvd.) $25,000.00 
Fence (730 LF aluminum 6FT “wrought iron look” & rolling gate) $30,000.00 
Subtotal: $166,320.00 

Infill Adaptive Reuse Grant (50% matching) for Interior Improvements (CRA contributes up to $75k): 
Electrical/Security ($12/SF x 2,158 S.F.)  $25,896.00 
Plumbing ($1,500 x 13 fixtures) $19,500.00 
HVAC (8 additional tons, dishwasher hood & Kitchen hood)  $45,600.00 
ADA Compliance (restrooms, doors, circulation) $64,740.00 
Site Lighting – 6 pole mounted fixtures  $48,000.00 
Subtotal: $203,736.00 

Additional Owner Expenses: 
Silt fence (320LF) $3,200.00 
Demolition (assuming no asbestos) $20,000.00 
Subtotal: $23,200.00 

Total “Hard” Construction Costs: $393,256.00 

Soft Costs: 
Architectural Fees for (Construction Documents) $34,968.00 
Site Lighting Design Fees $2,400.00 
Civil Engineering Fees $25,000.00 
General conditions (11%) $43,258.16 
Contractor overhead & profit (5%) $19,662.80 
Owner’s contingency (5%) $19,662.80 
Subtotal $144,951.76 

Total: (CRA contributes $165,000 total) $538,207.76 

If you have any questions, please contact our office. 

Very truly yours, 



|Page 2 of 2 

625 East Orange Street    Lakeland, Florida 33801    Phone: 863.688.1211    Fax: 863.688.1473 

M. Aaron Banks, AIA 


	Affordable Housing Memo Revised for January.pdf
	ADPC303.tmp
	Sheet1


	Platfor-Wish Package.pdf
	114 E Parker Draft Memo
	Platform-Wish Proposal

	Tapatios Package.pdf
	Tapatios Draft Memo
	Tapatios Grant Package
	734 E Memorial Renderings
	734 E Memorial Concept Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A101


	Tapatio's Cost Estimate_Recommended
	734 E Memorial--Grant Application and Scoring
	Tapatio's Cost Estimate_Revised 12.20.17





